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D.E. Shaw Composite
International Fund L.P. -
Ordinary Series Restricted
(SOP) Jan 22

1.00] 4,976,444.00| 4,976,444.00( 5,973,831.18| 5,973,831.18] 19.24

Starboard Value and
Opportunity Fund Ltd. - 1,030.50 2,628.79 2,708,981.75 3,722.59 3,836,145.68| 12.36
Class A Series 1

Palmerston Credit Feeder
Fund Limited - Class AV 21,113.02 124.01 2,618,300.44 170.48 3,599,396.07| 11.60
Series 09/2014

MY Asian Opportunities Unit

Trust - A-R Units/1 1,235.79 2,137.51 2,641,517.71 2,434.17 3,008,121.23] 9.69

Davidson Kempner
International (BVI), Ltd. -
Class C Tranche 3 Series 01
Jan 21 NEW ISSUE SOP

13,250.04 224.40| 2,973,276.03 226.99 3,007,638.69] 9.69

Sculptor Overseas Fund I1,
Ltd. - Class L Prime Series 2,374.88 1,000.00 2,374,883.30 1,231.13| 2,923,782.00| 9.42
146

CQS ABS Feeder Fund Limited

~Class B USD Shares 381.16 6,864.51| 2,616,481.59 7,164.11| 2,730,678.95| 8.80

Third Point Ultra Ltd. -
Class C - Series 1.75 - 1,995.86 1,386.03 2,766,321.84 1,321.27 2,637,078.32] 8.50
Series 1 New Issues

BFAM Asian Opportunities
Fund Limited - Class A-U 17,425.83 172.20| 3,000,681.88 144.37] 2,515,811.83| 8.10
Series 1

Palmerston Credit Feeder
Fund Limited - Class AV 6,000.00 100.00 600,000.00 99.46 596,743.20| 1.92
Series 03/2022

Davidson Kempner
International (BVI), Ltd. -

Class C Tranche 1 Series 01 358.04 672.96 240,948.45 709.74 254,116.23| 0.82
Jan 21 Class A and B NEW
ISSUE
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29 47,443,331.86 6,577 141.88 19,668
11
20 38,660,817.38 5,359 144 .57 20,041
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31 34,720,557.72 4,813 148.13 20,535
13
31,568,039.21 4,376 145.09 20,113
14
33,643,791.60 4,664 184.00 25,507
15
32,202,886.80 4,464 183.61 25,453
34,715,470.40 4,812 191.85 26,595
10 33,817,306.34 4,688 192.49 26,684
11 33,140,604.81 4,594 188.71 26,160
12 33,181,837.54 4,600 188.92 26,189
32,683,149.77 4,531 186.12 25,801
32,510,992.53 4,507 185.13 25,664
32,325,008.75 4,481 184.10 25,521
32,202,886.80 4,464 183.61 25,453
31,783,863.77 4,406 181.19 25,117
31,152,655.62 4,319 177.65 24,627
31,004,492.20 4,298 176.86 24,517
31,041,786.89 4,303 177.11 24,552
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119.30 133.82 12.17
133.82 140.20 4.77
140.20 134.73 -3.90
10 134.73 141.88 5.31
11 141.88 14457 1.90
12 144.57 148.13 2.46
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14 145.09 184.00 26.82
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0 264,140.63 640,900.63
©0) (17,241.93) (42,125.51)
20,856.13 134,173.32 527,583.44
©) (13,040.27) (29,085.24)
9,391.42 83,731.66 453,243.20
©0) (6,182.96) (22,902.28)
32,486.50 84,512.15 401,217.55
©) (1,646.51) (21,255.77)
10 1,123.10 81,431.56 320,909.09
©) (6,013.29) (15,242.48)
u 0 63,815.34 257,093.75
©0) (8,986.10) (6,256.38)
" 1,466.18 27,384.24 231,175.69
©0) (1,384.45) (4,871.93)
0 16,638.52 214,537.17
1 ©0) ©) (4,871.93)
" 0 34,223.83 180,313.34
©) (1,384.45) (3,487.48)
5 1,629.55 8,746.61 173,196.28
©0) ©) (3,487.48)
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13 32,012 4,438 33,780 4,683
4 1 15 2
263 36 14 2
267 37 29 4
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11 () () (@)) ©
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(89) (12) 7,701 1,068
2022 30
2022 30 2021 30
33,644 4,664 31,568 4,376
300 42
(1,652) (229) (5,625) (780)
(1,352) (187) (5,625) (780)
(89) 12) 7,701 1,068
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2021 9 1 2021 12 31

LIBOR

67/185



**2021

A3

2021

**

51

HSBC
HSBC
2021

1,200

2022

581,825

(25,802)

HSBC

30

A2

HSBC

30

12

12

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 30

68/185

- 526,124 _
- 31,886 -
- 349,414 163,445
11 19
2022 30 2021 30
- 2
- 13
4 -
15
2022 30 2021 30
263 14
HSBC
2022 30
2022 30 2021 30
@ €))
- (164)
(74) -
(76) (165)
1989
1,200



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

10

2022 30 2021 30
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180,313.34 1,629.55 (8,746.61) 173,196.28
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2020 1 2021 30
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VaR

VaR
1,000

VaR 99

2022 30 2021 30

VaR  99% (5.58) (5.79)
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2022 30
2021 30

HSBC 2021 30

262,849 2021 30 14,214
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FRS 102
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@)
2022 30
1 2
- 32,012 32,012
- 32,012 32,012
- (2) (2)
- ) )
2021 30
1 2
33,780 33,780
- 13 13
- 33,793 33,793
- [€)) (1)
- [€)) (1)
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HSBC
2022 4 30
(2021 30 :100.41%)
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Limited Class A-U Series 1
i 17,426 2,857 8.87
N1
CQS Abs Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B USD Shares 381 2,701 8.39
D.E Shaw Composite International Fund - CI Collective
L N ) B} 998 5,631 17.49
Liquidity Restricted Series Ordinary And Reserve
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C
i 358 257 0.80
Tranche 1 Series 1 Jan 21
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C
. 13,250 3,048 9.47
Tranche 3 Series 1 Jan 21
My Asian Opportunities Unit Trust Class A-R Units Series
1 1,236 3,108 9.65
Palmerston Credit Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class AV Series
21,113 3,657 11.35
09/2014
Palmerston Credit Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class AV Series
6,000 607 1.88
03/2022
Sculptor Overseas Fund Il Ltd. - Class L Prime Series 146 2,375 3,100 9.63
Starboard Value And Opportunity Fund Ltd. - Class A
) 1,031 4,114 12.77
Series 1
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C 1.75 - Series 1 New
1,996 2,932 9.11
Issue
32,012 99.41
2021 30 : 100.41%
191 0.59
2021 30 (0.41)%
32,203 100.00
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2022 30 2021 30 2020 30
183.61 184.00 145.09
152.73 154.49 123.56

2022 30 2021 30 2020 30

31,800,058 33,176,591 31,126,245
381,846 386,228 405,893
2022 30 2021 30

100.00% 100.00%
2022 30 2021 30

51.40% 54.10%

26.40% 27.80%

21.60% 18.10%

0.60% 0.00%

100.00% 100.00%
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2022 4 30

**
Palmerston Credit Feeder Fund Limited Class AV Series 03/2022 6,000 600

*kk
D.E Shaw Composite International Fund - Class Collective Liquidity Restricted Series 2 1,121
Sculptor Overseas Fund Il Ltd. - Class L Prime Series 146 348 490
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C Series 1.75 - Series 1 New Issue 245 464
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Limited Class A-U Series 1 NI 943 193

20

*x 2022 30

e 2022 30
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2022 4 30

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

HSBC -
(1.14%) 25.03% (4.56)% 3.73% (5.97)%

- Hedge Fund Research Fund of

2.24)% 0.94)% 2.92)% 5.59% 4.02)%
Funds Composite Index ( " ( " ( " ' ( o
HSBC -
(0.21)% 26.82% (2.05)% 4.96% (3-22)%
- Hedge Fund Research Fund of
(2.24)% 0.92% (2.92)% 5.59% (4.02)%

Funds Composite Index
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Consolidated Balance Sheet Statement

Assets Hotes
Current Assets
Portfolio of investrments 13

i A . o
Cash and cash equivalents 7
Total assets

Liabilities

Creditors: amounts faling due within one
e °
Total Liabilities

Net assets attributable to the
unitholders of the Fund

As at As at
30 April 2022 30 April 2021
USS'000 US5'000 LS5000 USS'000
32012 33,780
3 i
263 14
267 ]
32,279 33,808
(76) (195 o
(76} {165}
32,203 33,544

The consclidated financial statements were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management (Guemsey) Limited, on

29 Seplember 2022 and were signed on its behalf by

Director
For and on behalf of HSBC Management
{Guemsey) Limited

Director
For and on behalf of HSBC Management
{Guemnsey) Limited

The notes on pages 16 to 30 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2022 15

84/185



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Consolidated Statement of Total Return

Income
Net capital (lossespgans

Interest expense
Cperating expenses
Net expenses

Change in nel assets attributable to the
unitholders of the Fund from investment activities

Motas

11

Year Ended
a0 April 2022

Uss'000 uss'000
858
(164)

(1)

(782}
(783

i

Yaar Ended

30 April 2021
L55'000 USS'000
23
8,538

(1)
1928
(530

7,701

All results are derived from continuing operations, The Fund has no items of other comprehensive income and therefore
the change in net atiributable to the unitholders of the Fund from investment activities reflects the tolal comprehensive

income for the year.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to the Unitholders of the Fund

Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2022 30 April 2021
US5'000 USS'000 LSS 000 US5000
Net assets attributable to the unitholders of the Fund at the
start of the year 33,644 31,568
Movement due to issue and redemption of redeamakie
participating units:
Amounts receivedireceivable on issues 300 -
Less: Amounts paid/payable on redemptions (1.652) (5.625)
(1,352) (5.625)
Change in net assets attributable to the unitholders
of the Fund from Investment activities (B9) 7,701
Net assets attributable to the unithelders of the Fund at the
end of the year 32,203 33 B4
The notes on pages 15 to 29 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2022 14
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Structure of the Fund

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund (the "Trust™) is a sub-fund of HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, an open ended
Guemnsey unit trust scheme established as an umbrella fund which is authorised as a Class B Scheme under The
Authorized Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules and Guidance, 2021,

The registered office of the Manager of the Trust is Amold House, St Julian's Avenue, St Peter Port, Guermnsey GY'1
1WA, Channel Islands.

The Trust owns 100% of the units in HSBC Special Opportunities investments Limited (the "*Company™), a Guermnsey
registered company. The Trust also loans monies to the Company to fund its investing activities.

The Company owns the investments listed in the Portfalio of Investments,

These consolidated financial statements include all the assets and liabilities of the Trust and the Company {together
the “Fund™).

The Trust registered as an Altemative Investment Fund ("AIFT) with effect from 1 July 2014, with the Financial
Conduct Authority and the Commission de Surveillance du Seclor Financier. As a non-EEA AIF with a non-EEA
AIFM the Trust is not authorised or regulated under AIFMD and consequently is not required to have a depositary.

Statement of compliance
The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland ("FRS 1027) and the Statement of Recommended Practice

for Authcrised Funds (the "SORP) issued by the Investment Management Asscciation in May 2014 and effective
for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2015,

2 Prncipal Accounting Policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
matenal in relation to these consolidated financial statements:

Basis of ;

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis other than going concemn and under the
histarical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Golng Concern

The Manager has written to investors informing them of their decision to terminate the Trust. As a result, the going
concern basis of accounting is not appropriate and these financlal staternents have been prepared on a basiks other
than going concern. This has no matenal impact on the financial statements as the investments are current and held
at fair value,

Cash Flow Statement

The Trust has availed of the exemption available under FRS 102, Seclion ¥ “Statement of Cash Flows®™ not o
prepare a cash flow statement on the basis that substantially all of the Trust's investments are highly iquid and
camied at fair value, and the Trust provides a consolidated statement of changes in net assets attributable to the
unitholders,

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2022 16
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Principal Accounting Policies {(continued)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles
of FRS 102 requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.

The estimates and asscciated assumptions are based on historical experience and vanous other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the droumstances, the results of which form the basis for making the judgements
about camrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumplions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed within the Fair Value of Investments accounting palicy and Mote
13

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the results of the Trust and its wholly-owned subsidiary HEBC Special
Opportunities Investments Limited, a Guernsey registered company, The Manager does not consider the
unconsolidated balance sheet of the Trust to be a matenial activity as the only reascn for sefting up the subsidiary
company was for fiscal purposes. Accordingly, no unconsolidated balance sheet is presented in these consolidated
financkal stalements.

Fundtional and presentational currency

The functonal and presentational currency is US Dollar ("USS") because that is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Fund operates.

Determination of funcl

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic ervironment in which the Fund operates. When
indicators of primary economic envirenment are mixed, management uses its judgement to determine the functional
currency that most faithfully represents the economic effect of the underdying transactions, events and conditions.
The management has detemmined that the functicnal currency of the Fund is US Dollar. Investor subscriptions and
redemptions are received and paid in the currency of the relevant share class.

Financiall

The Fund has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments,
i} Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including deblors and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at transaction price.
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value
of the fulure receipts discounted al a marked rate of interest. Such assels are subsequently carmied at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Al the end of each reparting period finandal assels measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective
evidance of impairment. If an assel iz impaired the impairment lass is the difference between the carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset’s oniginal effective interest rate. The
impairment loss is recagnised in the consohidated statement of tolal return,

Cther financial assets, including investments in investment funds and dervative contracts, are miially measured at
fair value, which is normally the transaclion price. Such assels are subsequently carried at fair value and the
changes in fair value are recognised in the consclidated statement of total retumn,

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2022 17
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Principal Accounting Policies {(continued)

Finangal instrum ents (continued )
i} Financial assets {continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to ancther party or
{c) conlrol of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset
to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions,

iiy Financial liabilities

Basic financial lmbilities, including creditors and loan obligations are inftially recognised at transaction price, unless
the arangem ent constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured af the present value of
the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Craditors and loan cbligations are classified as debl instruments and are subsequently cammed a3t amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method,

Financial liabikties are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual cbligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

iy Fair value of investments

Imvestments n investment funds are valued at the net asset value per unit for the underlying investments that the
Fumd helds, &= at Sprm (Guemsey lHme) on the consclidated balance sheet date.

Imvestments n undedying funds which are not quoted on a recognised stock exchange or other trading facility are
valued at the net asset values provided by their fund managers or their administrators. These values may be
unaudited or may themselves be estimates,

In addition, their fund managers or their administraters may not provide values at all or in a timely manner and, to
the extent that values are not available, those investments will be valued by the Investment Adviser using valuation
technigues appropriate to those investments. In determining fair value, the Investment Adviser takes into
consideration, where applicable, the impact of suspension of redem plions, liquidation proceedings. investments in
side pockets and other significant factors. The Directers of the Manager have no reason to believe that the
valuations used are unreasonable.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses on investments are included in the consolidated statemvent of total return
within net capital gain. Realised and unrealised gains and losses on sales of investments are determined using the
average cost method. Purchases and sales of investments are accounted for on a trade date plus one basis.

iv) Forward foreign exchange contracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward foreign exchange contracts s calculated by reference
to the difference between the contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract. Unrealised appreciation is
reported as an asset and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liabilty in the consolidated balance sheet. All net
gains of losses on forward foreign exchange contracts are recorded in the cansolidated staterment of total return.

Revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established, All other sources of revenue are recognised on an accruals basis, Revenue is
included in the consolidated statement of total return. All non-dass specific income is allocated to each unit class in
proportion to the total net assets of the unit class during the year. All class specific income is allocated ta the unit
class to which it relates,

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2022 18

88/185



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  Principal Accounting Policies {continued)
Expenses

Expenses are induded in the consclidated statement of total return on an accruals basis. Al non-class specific
expenses are allocated to each unit dass in proportion to the total net assets of the unit class during the vear, All
class specific expenses are allocated to the unit class to which they relate.

Interest expense

Interest expense arises from credit faciities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the consolidated
statem ent of total return and are calculated using the effective interest rate method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs anse from credit facilities held by the Fund, These costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of total return on an accrual basis

Feoreign currency transadtions

Fereign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Menetary
assels and liabilties denominated in foreign currencies are transiated to US Dollars at the foreign currency closing
exchange rate ruling at the consclidated balance sheet date. The Fund reports the realised exchange gain or loss
a% well as the unrealised exchange appreciation or depregation on non-US Dollar denominated investments in the
censolidated statement of total return. Any realised exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised appreciation or
depreciation ariging from non-US Dollar denominated payables and receivables and on foreign currency
transactions are reflected in the consolidated staterment of total returm.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents includes cash in hand, depesits held at call with banks, other shori-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts, when applicable.
are shown as loans payables in current liabilities.

Units in issue

Redeemable participating units are redeemable at the option of the unitholders of the Fund and are dassified as
financial liabilies.

Transaction Cosls
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a

financial assel or financial lability measured at fair value through proft of loss, Transaction costs ane recognised
within the statem ent of total return shen incurmed.

Mew standards and amendments

There are currantly no future amendments to FRS 102 issued that would have a significant impact on the Fund.

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2022 18
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Met Capital Gains

Year Ended Year Ended

30 April 2022 30 April 2021

USS000 USS000

Realizad gains on non-derivative investments 1,650 2684
Realized losses on non-derivative investrments - (W]
et unrealized gains/i{losses) on non-darvative invesiments {1,749) 5,5.13
Realized gaing on derivative investments i 65
Realised losses on denvative investments [0} {38}
Met unrealised ganslosses) on dervative investmants {1;“ 14
Total net caplial gains (164) 8,538

Derivative investments held by the Fund are forward foreign exchange contracts as detailed in Note 12,

4 Operating Expenses

Year Ended Year Ended

30 April 2022 30 April 2021

_ Uss'000 US$000
Management fees (582) (526)
Performance fees _ 6 (349
Payable to the Manager and its associates (556) (875)
.T.ruste-a fEias - { &2‘}
Payable to the Trustee and ts associates : (32
Audk fovs {21 (22)
Other sund}_r_u:pmsas [205] -
Other expenses (226) (22}
Total expenses (FE2)y {929)

5 Management, Trusiee and Investment Adviser Agreements

The table below details the Management and Trustee fee rates as a percentage of MAV per share class charged to
the Fund and the performance fee rate per share dass:

Class Management Fee Peiformance Feg'
USD Dollar 1.75% 10%:
Euro 1.75% 10%

* Paid to the Investment Adviser on the new “excess” wvalwe ower the relevant hurdle rate. See page 2 for
details of the hurde rate applicable to each class.

The management, rustee and performance fees expensed during the year and cutstanding at year end were;

Year Ended 30 Aprl 2022 Year Ended 30 April 2021
Outstanding at Cutstanding at
Fee Expensed in year year end Expensed in year wear end
Management UE$581,825 - USS526,124 -
Trustee™” B . US$31,886 3
Performance USS:{zﬁ,,Elﬁ] - USS349,414 US5163 445

** Wfith effect 1 May 2021 Trustee fees are paid by the Manager from the Management Fees. See Notes 11 and 158,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& Debtors As al As at
30 April 2022 30 April 2021

uss'oon US5000

Receivable for investments sold = 2
Unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange contracts (see Note 12) - 13
Other receivables 4 -

4 15

7 Cash and Cash equivalents As at As at
30 April 2022 30 Apeil 2021

USs'000 US$000

Cash and bank balances 263 14

Cash balances are held by HSBC Continental Europe and HSBC Bank ple, Guemnsey Branch both of which are
ultimately cwned by HSBC Holdings ple. The Fund's cash is maintained in segregated accounts. The credit rating of
HSEBEC Holdings plc at 30 April 2022 was A3 (30 April 2021: AZ) as rated by Moody's Ratings Agency.

8 Creditors: Amounts Falling due within one year As at As at
30 April 2022 30 April 2021

Uss0o0 UE5000

Unrealised losses on forward 'Fmrign exchange contracts (see Note 12) {II (1
Performance fees g {164
Cther creditors 'il.‘N] -
(T6) {165}

9 Taxation Status

The umbrella fund, HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, is exempt from Guemnsey income tax under the Income Tax
{Exempt Bodies) (Guemsey) Ordinances 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP1,200 (30 April 2021:
GEP1,200).

10 Redeemable Participating Units in Issue
All series of units rank equally for allocation of ncome and expenseas and have the same rights atached to them.

The Manager may limit the number of units in the Trust which may be redeemed on any dealing day to not more
than 10% of the total number of units in issue immediately before such date, Any redemption of units during the first
12 calendar months from the date of subscripion shall be subject to a redemplion fee payable to the Fund and
equal to 5% of redemption proceeds. Thereafter the redemption fee shall be 0% A maximum initial charge of up to
3% of subscriplion monies may be charged on all dasses at the Manager's discretion,

The table below presents the Redeemable Participating Units in issue at the beginning and end of the financial
year ended 30 April 2022 and 30 April 2021,

Redeemable Redeemabie
Participating Units In Participating Units in
issue as at 1 May 2021 Subscriptions  Redemplions jssue as at 30 April 2022
US Dollar Class 180,313.34 1,629.55 (8,746.61) 173,196.28
Euro Hedged Class® 2,500.10 - X 2,500.10
Total 182,813.44 1,620.55 (8,746.61) 175,696.38

* Foimerty Euno Class
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 Redeemable Participating Units in lssue (continued)

Redesmable Redeemable

Participating Units in Participating Units in

) issue asat 1 May 2020  Subscriptions  Redemplions  jseue as at 30 April 2021
US Dallar Class 214,537.17 - {34,2238% 180,313.34
Euro Class 328504 . {784.94) 250040
Total 21782221 - {35,008.77) 182 813.44

The table below presents the Net Assels in US$000 for each of the last three year ends.

J0-Apr-22 30-Apr-21 30-Apr-20
US Dollar Class 31,800 33,177 31,126
Eurc Hedged Class” 45 457 442
Total 32,203 33644 31,568

* Famety Eura Class
The Fund's net asset values per unit are disclosed on page 32,
11 Related Party Transactions
Fellowing a revdew of the servce provider arrangements, changes were made an 1 May 2021, The table balow

presents detais of those related parties who provide servces to the Fund. All related parties are ultimately wholly
owned by HSBC Bank ple.

Related Party
Relationship
Trustes® HSBC Custody Serices (Guemnsey) Limited
Custodian® HSBC Continental Europe
HSBC Bank plc Guernsey Branch
Designated Administrator® HSBC Securities Services (Guernzey) Limited
Multi-Currency Crverdraft Facility HSBC Bank ple
Bank Accounts HSBC Continental Europe
HS8C Bank ple Guernzey Egm:h
Investment Adviser HSBC Alternative Investments Limited

“fees are paid out of Investment Manager's fees.

Baorowings Loan
The Fund has an uncommitted multi-=currency overdraft faciity allowing it to bomrow in aggregate an amount equal to

the lesser of US33 Smillion and 10% of its net asset value, The Fund may use the proceeds of the facility for the
purpase of short term liquidity as permitted in its offering document.

HSEBC Bank plc provided credit facilities o the Fund during the year, At the year-end there was no drawdown on the
credit facility {30 April 2021; USSNil), The interest paid on bormowings during the year was USST18 (30 April 2021:
UES51,179). The loan is secured and repayable on demand and there were no breaches of borrowing restrictions by
the Fund during the year,

There were no oiher related party fransadions for the year other than fees paid to the Manager as outlined in Mote 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

Assets may be denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each unit class and certain currency
exposure will be hedged back to the relevant unit class cumrency. Hedging for this purpose may be by means of
forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such contracts or by wsing such other dervative instruments as
may be available and having the same or similar effect.

The Fund shall not invest in derivative instruments for speculative purposes. The Investment Adviser retains the right
to vary the policy on currency hedging at its absolute discretion, AN costs of such hedging will be met by the
Unitholders of the relevant unit dass only.

The following forward foreign exchange confracts were outstanding at 30 April 2022 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Special Opporunities Fund - Euro Hedged Class,

Unrealised
Gain/({Loss)
Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty USS
3_1-&@@-22 _ EU_RE_BG_.G!_:_B UEHWZED ! Hm gyl_k !_'2.?-_1?]
Unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange confracts (2,247)
Net unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts (2,247)

The following forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2021 in respedct of the hedging of the
HESBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class.

Unrealised

Gainf{Loss)
Maturity Amaunt Bought Amount Sold Counterparty uss
0d-May-24 EURZ81,5859 US5461 875 State Streat Bank 11,810
oq,l_Mw_.m EUR4, 189 USS5,057 State Street Bank 10
28-May-21 EUR 384,485 USS464 542 State Streat Bank T8z
04 Mary-21 USD464,316 ELIR384 485 State Street Bank (7em
O4-Mary-21 USD13,288 _ EUR11,2683 State Street Bank [362)
Unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange confracts 12,602
Unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts (1.150)
Met unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 11,452

413 Financial Instruments
Market Risk Oversight

The Manager takes a multi-tiered approach to risk management, with the understanding and management of risk
embedded in the manager selection and portfolic management processes, together with portfolic oversight and
monitorng in accordance with Fund investment restrictions, as listed in the relevant Fund section in the Prospectus,

Im manager selection, due diligence revolves around understanding whether the risks a hedge fund manager takes
in the pursuit of returns are appropriate and controlled. Complementing this investment focused due diligence, is a
separale operational due diligence process, which evaluates the business and operaticnal (non-invesiment) risks of
ia hedge fund and seeks to aveid hedge funds where inadequate structure or process could compromise an
nvestment.
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13 Financial Instrumeants (continued)
Market Risk Oversight {continued)

I portfolio management, ensuring that portfolics are appropriately diversified is paramount. In order to assess nisk
and portfolio diversification, both qualitative and quantitative techniques are used, including retums and exposure-
bazed analysis.

The Manager monilors each imvestes Fund's compliance on a monthly basis with the imvestment restrictions
detailed in the Prospectus, and retains oversight of all aspedcts of the risk management process,

The main nsks arising from the Fund's financial instruments are market risk, liquidity risk and credd risk.
Market risk

Market nsk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financal instruments held. & represents the
potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The
Imvestment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in order to minimise the nisk associated with
particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund's imvestment objective.

Market risk embodies the polential for both gains and losses and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk. The profitability of the Fund's investment programme depends to a great extent on corect assessments of the
future course of price movements of securities and equities and other investments. There ¢an be no assurance that
the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price movements, The securities markets have in recent years
been charactensed by great volatility and unpredictability. With respect to the investment strategy into which the
Imvestment Adviser has invested the Fund's assets, there is always some, and from time to time a significant,
degree of market risk.

Dietails of the Fund's investment peortfolio at the consclidated balance sheet date are disclosed in the Portfolio of
Investments included on page 31.

The Fund. generally seeks to initiate, increase, reduce or exit positions based on the use of a number of risk
analysis techniques, including but not limited te sensithvity and simulation amalysis and wvalue at risk ("VaR")
measurements, which use statistical analysis of historical and implied volatiliies and movements to determine
confidence levels of the historical maximum potential loss incurred for each position over a determined ime harizon.
There can be no assurance that losses will not occur and past performance is not indicative of fulure results.

The VaR calculation is a monte carlo simulation of each of the underlyving holdings of the portfolio, which are then
aggregated lo produce returns for one thousand simulated portfolios. The returns are simulated as the proportional
increments of constant drft, constant volatility stochastic processes, thereby approximating continuous-time
geomelric Brownian motion.

The data below indicates the VaR of the Fund’s financial instruments, measured as the potential 1-day loss in value
from adverse changes in fund prices, interest rates and foreign exchange rates using a 99% confidence level,

30 April 2022 30 Agril 2021
Overall Market VaR {38%) (5.58)% (5.79)%

{a) Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by faclors specific to an individual
investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the market.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard investment and borrowing resrictions as defined in the
Prespectus. The Fund's investment restrictions are monitored by both the Trustee and the Manager on a monthly
basis. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings
come close to restriction levels,
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13 Financial Instruments {continued)
Market risk (continued)
{b) Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than its
functional currency. Consequently, the Fund may be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative
to other foreign curencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the
Fund's assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than US Dollars. For the year ended 30 April 2022
expasure was USSNIl (30 Aprl 2021: USSHMII).

The Funds currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies and
procedures in place. All currency exposure at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency of the relevant unit class
on a monthly basis, using standard monthly foreards. The Fund’s overall currency positions and exposures are
manitored on a monthly basis by the Manager,

The Fund also offers redesmable participating units denominated in Euro exposing the unitholders to foreign currency
risk. This risk is mitigated on behalf of the unitholders by the Fund entering Inta forward foreign exchange contracts
as described further in this Note 12,

(c) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund's financial assets are investments in investiment funds which neither pay interest nor hawve
a maturity date. The underlying funds the Fund invests in are exposed to interest rate nisk; however, the Fund
mitigates this risk by diversifying its invesiments.

Al the year-end there was no loan outstanding from HSBC Bank plc (30 Aprl 2021: USSKIl).
The Fund is exposed to variable interest rates on cash and bank balances of US5262 849 (30 April 2021:US514,214).
Ligquidity risk

The main liabilties of the Fund are the redemption of any units that investors wish to redeem. The rigk is that the
Fund might not be able to liguidate investment positions in order to repay amounts demanded by its Unitholders.

The Fund's liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies and
procedures in place. It is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds, limited partnerships or other
vehicles that have no Bguidity. The Fund's cverall liquidity risks are monitored on a monthly basis by the Manager.

The Fund's investment restricions, as defined in the Prospectus. some of which pertain to the management of
liguidity risk and concentrations thereof are monitored on a continuous basis by the Trustes of the Fund. There are
specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come close to
restriction levels.

The Manager may limit the number of Units in the Fund which may be redesmed on any Dealing Day to not more
than 10% of the total number of Units in issue immediately before such date. Any Units failing to be redeemed upon
the exercise of this discretion by the Manager will be carried forward to the next Dealing Day and shall be redeemed
pro rata in priofity Lo any other Units in respect of which a Redemplion Notice has subsequently been recehed.

All of the Funds liabilities are payable within one year.
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13 Financial Instruments {continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterpary to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an abligation or commitment
that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to credit risk on parfies with whom it trades and also bears the risk of settlement default.

Al of the aszets of the Fund are held either by HSBC Continental Europe, one of the Custodians or HSEC Private
Bank (Sulsse) SA (the “Sub-Custodian”). Bankruptey or insohvency of the Custedian or Sub-Custadian may cause the
Fund's rights with respect to secunties held to be delayed or imited. The Manager monitors its risk by monitoring the
credit quality and financial positions of the Custodian and Sub-Custodian the Fund uses, both are ultimately wholly
owned by HSBC Heldings Ple. The credit rating of HSBC Holdings Pie at 30 April 2022 was A- (30 Aprl 2021: State
Street Corporation: A) as rated by S&P's Ratings Agency.

HESBC Bank ple which is ultimately owned by HSBC Haldings ple, provided credit facilities (o the Fund during the year,

Im addition, the Fund has indirect exposure to credit nisk through the credit risk held by the underying fund
investments.

The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large number of counterparties.
As at 20 April 2022, none of the financial assets of the Fund are past due or are impaired {30 April 2021: none).

Fair value hierarchy

FRS 102 requires disclosure relating to the fair value hierarchy in which fair value measurements are categorised
for assels and Habilities. The disclosures are based on a three-level fair value hierarchy for the inputs usad in
valuation techniques to measure fair value.

The fair value hierarchy as required under FRE 102 is based on the valuation inputs used to fair value the financial
assets and liabilities and consideration of the market activity for each individual financial asset and liability, The
definitions for Levels 1, 2and 3 are set out below.,

Lenvel 1: The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or labilities that the entity can access
al the measurement date,

Level 20 Inputs other than quoted prices induded within Level 1 that are observable (i.e. developed using market
data) for the asset or liability, either directy or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable (i.e. for which market data is unavallable) for the asset or liability.
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement was categorised in its entirety was

determined on the basis of the lowest level input that was significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
Fer this purpose, the significance of an input was assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirely.
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13 Financial Instruments {continued)
Fair value hierarchy [continued)

If a fair value measurement used cbservable inputs that required significant adjustment based on unobservable
inputs, that measurement was a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair
value measurement in its entirety required judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or hiability, The
determination of what constituted “observable” required significant judgement by the Investment Adwiser,

The Investment Adviser considerad observable data to be market data that was readily avallable, regulary distributed
or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and prosdded by independent sources that are actively invoheed in
the relevant market,

{a) Hierarchy analysis

The following tables provide an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the Fund's financial assets, measured at fair
value at 30 Apnl 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels Us$'000 UE$ 000 US§'000 UESs'000
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investment funds - E 32,012 . 32,012
Forward i'l'u'ei'gn'eichmgz contracts - E - .
Total Assets - 32,012 . 32,012
Liabilities
Financial liabllities at falr value through profit or loss:
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 12) . (2
Total Liabililes ' ' = i : @

The following table provides an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the Fund's financial assets, measured at fair
value at 30 April 2021:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels US5'000 UsSs'a00 US5000 US3F000
Financial assels at fair value through profit or insx:
Investment funds - 33,780 - 33,780
Forward Enlm exchange contracts - 13 - 13
I'_I'ulnt Assets - 33,793 = 33, T8
Liabilities.
Final;ltiul linbilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Ferward foreign exchange confracts . - {1} - (13
Total Liabilities - {1} = (1)

The level in the hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety is determined based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

Transfers between levels are recorded as if the transfer happened at the end of the financial year.

In refation to financial assets and liabities not measured at fair value induding cash and cash equivalents, other
assels and liabilties, and net assels altributable to holders of redeemable units, their carrying amount approximate
fair value because of the short nature and the high credit quality of counterparies and these assets and liabilties
have been classified as Level 2 of the hierarchy in accordance with FRS 102
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13 Financial Instruments {continued)
Fair value hierarchy {continued)
(b) Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

There were no ransfers between the Levels of the fair value hierarchy during the financial year ended 30 April 2022
of during the financial year ended 30 April 2021.

(c) Leved 3 reconciliation

The table below shows a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of finandal instruments categonsed within
Lewvel 3 between the beginning and end of the reperting period.

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2022 30 April 2021

Level 3 Lewval 3

FIngm_:_ia_l assets dgﬁigna_tgq__a‘: fa_lr '!ralue through profit or loss UsS§'000 Uss0o0
Opening balance at the start of the year - 3
Total realised and unrealised loss for the year - {n
Sales and repayments = (2}

Closing balance at the end of the year - .

(cf) Significart unobservable inputs used in measuning fai value

Significant unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value represents the latest available NAV of the units/shares
of the illiquid investments in funds as published by the administrator of the fund and the company's recent
transactions.

{e) Effect of change in significant assumplions of Level 3 financial insiruments
As at 30 April 2022 and 30 April 2021 the Fund had no Level 3 investments.

Leverage

Whiare a fund permits leverage, the underying volatility of the fund will be significantly greater than would otherwise
hawve been the case without the permitted leverage, Whilst this gives a fund the ability to participate in higher returns
associated with greater exposura, it also gives a fund axposure to ncreased losses where markets in general and a
fund in particular, invest in assets where prices suffer declines,

Certain investment funds in which a fund may invest use material levels of leverage and are not limited in either
their borrowing capacity nor in their level of margin commitment. The total value of positions held by these funds
may exceed their net asset values. The leverage acquired offers the possibility of achieving a much greater cverall
return, but also increases the Fund's volatility and carries the risk of total less of the amount invested, Please refer
to Maote 11 for details on borrowings of the Fund.

14 Capital Management

The capital of the Trust is represented by the net assets altributable to unitholders of the Fund. The Trust is subject
to quarterly redemptions requests of the unitholders.

The Trust's aim with respect to management of its capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem.

The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attnbutable to unitholders of the Fund. As
detailed in Nate 13, the Fund's investment restnictions, as defined in the Prospecdlus, some of which pertain to the
management of liquidity risk and concentrations thereof include restrictions in respect of investment in closed-ended
funds, restrictions in respect of redemptions, restrictions in respect of the percentage holding allowable in any
individual investment fund. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and
situations where holdings come close to restriction levels.
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14 Capital Management (continued)

As detailed in Note 10, the Manager may limit the number of Units which may be redeemed on any Dealing
Day to not more than 10% of the total number of Units in issue immediately before such date if the liquidity of the
Fund become insufficient. Such 10% limit shall be calculated in resped of the Fund as a whole and not in respect of
each individual Unit class.

The Fund also has a loan facilty aveilable to cover a cash shortfall caused by mismatched settlement dates on
purchase and sale transactions and to fund redemptions; and for nvestment purposes, subject to a maximum of the
lesser of USS3 Smillion and 10% of the Fund's NAV, to facilitate additional investment in investrent funds. Please
refer to Mote 11,

15 Distribution Policy

The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend. All income will be “rolled-up”, and income will not be
distributed but will be retained in the Fund and reflected in the NAV per unit.

16 Foreign Exchange Rate

The following foreign exchange rate was used to translate assets and liabilities inbo the reporting currency (US
Dollars):

As at Az at
30 April 2022 30 April 2021
Eura 0.9493 08287

17 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The Fund had no commitment or contingent liabilities as at 30 April 2022 and 30 April 2021.
18 Controlling Parties

The Manager does not consider there (o be an immediate or ultimate contredling party of the Fund,
18 Significant Events during the year

On 1 May 2021, new service provders were appointed which were based upon a wide ranging, open tender process
with leading intemnational providers, including those cutside of HSBC.

Az of the date of the appointments, the Manager no lenger applies separate fees in respect of each of the
Management Fee and the Trustee's fee. Instead, these two fees have been combined into a single Management Fee.
The single Management Fee is payable to the Manager. As presanted in Mote 5 the Manager pays the Trustes's fea
out of the Management Fee, This administrative change was fee neufral for unitholders.

There were no other significant events during the year ended 30 April 2022 that require adjustment to, or disdosure
in these consolidated financial statements.

20 Subsequent Events

The Manager wrole Lo investors on 27 September 2022 informing them that the Trugl is to be closed, the final Met
Azzet Value will be produced as at 31 December 2022,

There were no other significant events affecting the Fund since the year end which require adjustment to, or discosure
in the consclidated financial statements.
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21 Highest and Lowest NAY per unit during the year

Highest Lowest
Unit Class NAY per Unit NAV per Unit

19249 183.56
161.03 152.73

HEBC Special Opportunities Fund - US Dollar Class
HSBC Specil Opportunities Fund - Eure Hedged Class
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Portfolio of Investments as at 30 April 2022 (Unaudited)

Security Description Holding Market value o, of total
UES000 net assets
Investment Funds (30 April 2021: 100.41%)

BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Lim'rt_ad Glgﬁ A Senes 1 l\ii 17,426 2,857 887
CO% Abs Feeder Fund Lid, - Class B USD Shares 381 2,70 839
D.E Shaw Composite International Fund - Cl Collective Liquidity Restricted 998 5831 1749
Saries Ordinary And Resarve
Davidson Kempner istemational (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 1 Senes 1 Jan 358 257 0.80
|
Davidson Kempner Intemational (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 3 Seres 1 Jan 13,280 3,048 94T
2
My Asian Opportunities Unit Trust Class A-R Units Series 1 1,236 3108 863
Palmerston Credit Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class AV Series 0872014 21,113 3857 11.35
Palrerston Credit Feader Fund Lid. - Class AV Seres 0372022 6,000 607 1.88
Seulptor Overseas Fund Il Lid, - Class L Prime Seres 146 2,375 3,100 963
Starboard Value And Opportunity Fund Ltd_ - Class A Series 1 1,031 4,114 1277
Third Paint Ultra Ltd. - Class C 1.75 - Series 1 New |ssue 1,006 2932 an
Total Portfolio of Investments (30 April 2021: 100.41%) 32012 9941
Met current assets (30 April 2021: MNet current kabilities (0.41)%) i 0.58
Total net assets 32,203 10 0e)
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Investor Information as at 30 April 2022 (Unaudited)

102/185

As at As at A at
Net asset value per unit 30 April 2022 30 April 2021 30 April 2020
UE Dollar Class Uss133.61 US5184.00 UE5145.08
Euro Hedged Class EUR15273 EUR154 49 EUR1Z3SE
Asat Az al Az at
Net asset value 30 April 2022 30 April 2021 30 April 2020
US Dollar Class US$31,800,058  UUS$33,176,591 US$31,126,245
Euro Class EURIB1,846 EUR386, 228 EUR405,893
Portfolio classification As al As at
30 April 2022 30 April 2021
Unlisted securitios 100.00% 100.00%
Sector Allocation As at Az at
30 April 2022 30 April 2021
Event Driven 51.40% 54.10%
Mult-Strategy 26.40%, 27 .80%
Credit Long/Short 21.60% 18.10%
Cash and Expenses 0.60% D.00%
it kit ot e i
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Summary of Significant Portfolio Changes for the year
ended 30 April 2022* (Unaudited)

Purchases™
Cost
Description Hominal US$ 000
Palmerston Credit Feeder Fund Limited Class AV Senes 02022 6,000 &00
Sales™"
Proceeds
Description Hominal US5 000
D.E Shaw Composite International Fund - Class Collective Liquidty Restricted Series 2 1,129
Sculptor Overseas Fund Il Ltd. - Class L Pime Series 148 348 450
Third Point Liltra Ltd. - Class C Series 1.75 - Series 1 New Issue 245 464
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Limited Class A-U Series 1 NI 243 183

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a secunity exceeding 1% of the net assets of the
Trust at the start of the year. In any event, at a minimum, the 20 largest purchases and 20 largest sales must be shown.

** Other than those listed above, there were no other purchases during the financial year ended 30 April 2022
*** Other than those listed above, there were no other sales during the financial year ended 30 April 2022
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Performance Information
for the year ended 30 April 2022 (Unaudited)

Performance Overview
Year endad 2z 2021 2020 2019 e
HSBC Special Opporfunities Fund = Euro Hedged Class (1.14%) 25.03% [456% 373% (597)%

Benchmark — Hedge Fund Research Fund of Funds Compesite Indexe (2.24)%  (084)% (2592)%  550% (4.02)%

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund — US Dollar Class (0.24)% 26.82% (205)% 496% (323)%
Benchmark — Hedge Fund Research Fund of Funds Composite Index  (2.24)/%  0.82% (283% 5.58% (4.023%

Past performance is not indicative of future performance. The performance data does not include commissions
and costs incurred on tha issus and redemption of units.
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Information on HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund

Information on HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund

HSBC Altemative Strategy Fund is an umbrella unit trust comprising the following sub fund and dasses (as at 30 April
2022y

HEBC Special Opportunities Fund —US Dollar Class
HESBC Special Opportunities Fund -~ Euro Hedged Class
collectively known as the HSBC Special Opponunities Funds

Unitholders should note that copies of the latest financial statements of the above Fund are available from the
Manager free of charge on request.
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HSBC

31,094,602.29 4,310,489

52,815.41 7,322

31,041,786.88 4,303,168
173,196.28

177.11 25
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100,000 1,618
100,000
100,000
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HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
49 24,108
2,225
33 19,586
14 2,297
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38 59

23 103

31 UFJ
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HSBC

2021 12 31
2021 2020

13,552 1,879 18,126 2,513
11 9,205 1,276 6,027 836
13 50,216 6,961 39,400 5,462
12

72,973 10,116 63,553 8,810
14 26,916 3,731 26,564 3,683
15 26,293 3,645 17,969 2,491

53,209 7,376 44,533 6,174
17 158 22 158 22

19,606 2,718 18,862 2,615

19,764 2,740 19,020 2,637

72,973 10,116 63,553 8,810

2022 31
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2021 12 31

2021 2020
1 0 25 3
1 0 25 3
89,734 12,440 78,315 10,857
(80,248) (11,125) (69,584) (9,646)
9,486 1,315 8,731 1,210
413 57 190 26
9,900 1,372 8,946 1,240
42 6 (163) (23)
9,942 1,378 8,783 1,218
(1,918) (266) (1,859) (258)
(2.,250) (312) (1,414) (196)
(4,168) (578) (3,273) (454)
5,774 800 5,510 764
(30) (O] 24 (©)
5,744 796 5,486 761

2020
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2021 12 31
2021 2020
5,774 800 5,510 764
10 115 16 (100) 14)
10 (13,994) (1,940) (19,626) (2,721)
10 8,676 1,203 20,235 2,805
(€)) () (25) (©)
(30) @® 24) (©)
540 75 5,970 828
1 0 25 3
1 0 25 3
(5,000) (693) (7.500) (1,040)
(5,000) (693) (7,500) (1,040)
(4,459) (618) (1,505) (209)
18,126 2,513 19,531 2,708
(115) (16) 100 14
13,552 1,879 18,126 2,513
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2021 12 31
2021 158 22 18,862 2,615 19,020 2,637
5,744 796 5,744 796
5,744 796 5,744 796
(5,000) (693) (5.,000) (693)
2021 12 31 158 22 19,606 2,718 19,764 2,740
2020 158 22 20,876 2,894 21,034 2,916
5,486 761 5,486 761
5,486 761 5,486 761
(7,500) (1,040) (7.500) (1,040)
2020 12 31 158 22 18,862 2,615 19,020 2,637
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2021 2020
1 25

2021 2020
80,539 61,405
9,195 16,910
89,734 78,315
(17,824) (17,974)
(1,178) (584)
(51,578) (35,204)
9,277) (15,217)
(391) (605)
(80,248) (69,584)
9,486 8,731

NAV
13

1.1 2020 1.1
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13
11
2021 2020
528 133
(115) 57
12 31 413 190
2021 2020
1,918 1,859
HSBC GPB
GPB
2021 12 31 GPB 1,917,930 2020
1,857,579
2021 2020
13 13
2 2
12 31 15 15
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2021 2020
87 76
87 76
2021 2020
23 22
7 2
30 24
10
29 2015 10
2015 10
2E
29,870 2020 24,248
0.44 2020 0.44
2021 2020
5,774 5,510
10 577 551
(547) (527)
30 24
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2021 2020
50 5,000 75 7,500
2021 5.0 2020
2021 2020
13,552 18,126
2021 2020
5,774 5,510
115 (100)
115 (100)
(10,816) (21,110)
(3,178) 1,484
(13,994) (19,626)
8,324 4,276
352 15,959
8,676 20,235
@D (25)
(30) (24)

540 5,970
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2021 2020
1,634 1,236
7,966 5,241
9,600 6,477
(395) (450)
12 31 9,205 6,027
IFR
12 31
2021 2020
450 579
8 43
63) (58)
- (114)
12 31 395 450
12
2021 2020
0.001 0.001
)
2021
HSBC
100 1
2020
HSBC
100 1
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37,405 19,954
3,869 2,982
8,942 16,464
12 31 50,216 39,400
14
2021 2020
26,916 26,564
15
2021 2020
2,580 5,201
1,125 999
22,353 11,360
235 409
12 31 26,293 17,969
16
2021 12 31 2020
17
2021 2020
100,000 158 100,000 158
12 31 100,000 158 100,000 158
18
2021 12 31 2020
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126/185



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
2021 12 31 90 90
13,552 _ _ 13,552
6,063 2,793 349 9,205
46,316 3,866 34 50,216
65,931 6,659 383 72,973
2020 12 31 90 90
18,126 . _ 18,126
5,327 652 48 6,027
39,005 362 33 39,400

62,458 1,014 81 63,553
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26,916 26,916 26,916
23,713 23,713 23,713
2021 12 31 50, 629 50,629 50,629
26,564 26,564 26,564
17,969 17,969 17,969
2020 12 31 44,533 44,533 44,533
2021 12 31
2021 2020

81 126

332 17

2 28

} 1

12 31 415 172
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2021 12 31
70,454 1,565 954 - 72,973
(51,729) (1,113) (367) - (53,209)
18,725 452 587 - 19,764

2020 12 31
61,448 1,506 558 41 63,553
(61,768) (1,486) (299) - (63,553)
(320) 20 259 41 -
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33,043 33,548
(735) (701)
32,308 32,847
18,130 17,784
(294) (280)
17,836 17,504

2020

2021 2020
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HSBC HSBC
2021 2020
5,000 7,500
2021 2020
12 31 12 31
1 ! 1 !
30,534 13,552 25,374 18,126
1,634 1,634 1,888 1,236
30,884 26,916 26,564 26,564
23,765 22,353 806 11,360
2021 2020

1 25

261 262

17,824 17,974

50,239 34,117

9,277 15,217

391 526

1,918 1,787

- 120

1,335 855

HSBC
HSBC
2021 12 31 HSBC

1986 25
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HSBC Managemont (Guernsey) Limited

Balance sheet at 31 December 2021
Ragistration No: 15988

2 e
W USE 000 ]
-
‘Cath el cah et ——— ' 13,582 1T
Trads s=c oAher raceivabion " 0,205 (73]
Prraparprianls Beed Botiued oo 7] lﬁ.ﬁi"’ T4
irsaatrarts in e = =
Total asssts TLET3 1]
Liskifition and equity
Lishtities
“iracie aned otner papabiey u 28510 e
Aocrina, fatarmed imcnrma and aiber (atite 0 76,263 ]
Total labilites 53,200 4,651
Bty e
Eallad up thae capital i 168 [
[y p——— 19,0048 AR
Total suity ) 14,764 6,00
Total labilites and squity TEOT3 3,550

Thi sccomparmyng rotes on pepes 12 to 21 form an integral part of theso finencial statomants,
Thesa financial siatorments on pages B to 21 wore approved by the Beard of Directors on 31 March 2022 and signod on its behall

d

S J Roussl J Udely
DHrpcer Director
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HSBC Managemaeant (Guernsey) Limited

Financial statements

Income statemant for the year ended 31 December 2021

2031 Far0
o USHD00 00

Idrasl b —— ] 1 75
Péat interest incomo — 3 3
“Fem na commimion income B 7aA AT
“Fas ard tommission maponss {80,345 5
"ot fun incoma 3 9488 BT
\Nhir cpwmling fnooma = ] &3 i
"Nt cparsting Incama bafore kaan Impsirmant charges and othes credit Hak provision 5500 g
“Creat mpe iasien Inciuding T \Gasen amd Irpalrmans gainy Az 6
Bl dopisatieg Incsme TTiE B
Ll COmparaition B5a Daranils ] (LI (]
‘Garwaral el Scimbrrpinatren marssy 2,250 (L]
bl npatyting Sepaaas T e R
Profi balars tax Brra 610
JELREN 7 ] [E]
Nt ol for the yaar 5743 B.4BE

Mmm B continuing. Thora has baen no comprabmmibm incams of expansa othes than 'Ihu-lllﬂilbl!l"lh&‘“llmn
abovn (2020 nif.
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2021
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zo21 20
ke USFOe0 e
Hmﬂi—vﬂmm
Frofit hefgs ta - 5778 EE1G
Adjustments for —
Fecaah e bndluded In peofft bafors T ag 115 410
Chang in DRrMTeg Basels Ll {13, 994] 118,628
Chargs in ogaretog labotes 1 BETE Fovo
[area incoome (1] T
i s {39 4
Mat cash Braer Sher) @oiivities (X1 LE: 1)
Cath flows from imvestisg activities
Jrhrem reostay 1 5
Wst caah gEaswad I bvasiing soikles 1 o3
Cash flows from finsncing sciivitias
Dindieedis pad ' 5.600) 7,500
Mt cauh waad In Nimansisl sciivins 15,0090 [
Pinl docreass in cash ssd cash squivalents . L [
Caih and caa eyvants Bromgh lerwatd {[AET) TWET
Efiict of fxchange rais chinges on cash and cash souvaiarts = nim 100

Caah and cash aquivalants carvied foreand

10
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HSBC Management (Guemsey) Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2021

Called vp sham Placained

eagital sarringe Torsl wqpeivy
e e UBFE0D usg 000 USE 000
AL 1 Jan 2021 - 168 [T ] 18,020
Pt Yot ymar = B %
_!?mimhﬂ-'—- = ey B, 744
{Crvigiands to sharmiolder [ = 5,000 [5,000)
A1 31 Dag 2021 16 18,808 18,754
a1 Jan 2030 7] HETE FI)
Frofit for tha yasr HAES ]
Total compreterares Sncams for ihe yasr B.490 8,80
Dividad® 10 shannclders ] 75004 [
131 Dee 20T0 ] THEA2 18,000

Equity ks wholly atbriputabla 1o eguity shoraholdess of HSBC Managemant (Guornsey] Limited,

136/185



EDINETOOOO
O00OO00O00O00000000o0noonoOonod(esL8s)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

HSBC Management (Guarnsey) Limited

Notes on the Financial Statements

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

Tha financlal statemants of the Entity hawe been pregared In scoordance with the Gueomssy Law as applicabls to companles using
IFRSs a8 adopted by tha ELL. Tha principal ncoounting policies sppsed in tha prepamtion of these financial stsiemants ke baan
conaistently applied to all of the years prosented, unless otherwise stated.

1.1. Basis of preparation

[#] Complisncs with International Financial Reporting Standards

Tha financinl statoments of the Entity hiawe boen propared in scoondance with the Guamssy Law as applicabls to companios wsing
IFRSs a5 sdopted by the ELL

Standards adoptod dusing the yoar ended 31 Decomber 2021

Thare ofe na now standards adoptod during the year anded 31 December 2021 which hawve material impact on the Entity's
financial rtatomants

fb} Future accounting developments

Minos amaondrmants 1o IFASs

Thore are no mingr amanrdmaonts to IFASs offective from 1 Janusry 2021 that are appScable 1o the Entity, Howavor, thare ono

minar amandmants to IFRSs that are sMective from 1 Jenusy 2022 and 1 Janvary 2023, Thase amandmaents will have an
Insignificant atfect, whon adopied, on the financial statermants of the Entity.

Mew [FRSs
FRF I7 tromrancd Confrecin”

IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts’ was (ssund in Moy 2017, with amendments to the standard isswed in June 2020. The standard
comas into offect on 1 Janusary 2023, At 1 January 2021, tho Entity dogs not hold any nsurance contracts and thenofors no
spnificant impact B expected from this standand,

[c] Foreign currencies

Thi functional currensy of tha Entity ks LIS dolinr, which ks slso the presentation currency of tha financial statements of the

Entity

Trangactions In foroign currencies am recorded at the ratn of exchange on he date of the iransaction, Assets and liabllities

denominated in foreign curroncies are transiated at the rate of sxcchangs at the balance sheat dato except non-monstary assels

ard Eabilitios maasured a1 historical cost, which are transiated using the rate of exchange at tho inltial ransasction dete. Exchangn

detforences ars included in other comprohoensive incoma or in tha incomoe statoment depending on whora tho goin or loss on tho
dnriying itam in gnisd

Unless olherwise spocified, o8 USS symbols reprasent US dallars,
{d} Prosentation of information

All amounts have boean rounded to the noasest 1hounand unless olhorwiss stated.

Financia! Statemanis Pragaration

Tha financial stasemanis prasant information about tha Entity 83 an individual undoraking nnd not about its group. The Entity is

it requined to prapars consolidatied financial s1atemant by virtue of the sxemplion confered by Soction 244 (1) of tha Guemsey
Lo and par.dta) of IFRS 10 ‘Consolddated financial statamonts',

fe] Critical accounting estimates and judgements

This praparation of fimancial information roguines tha wsn of estimatos and judgomanis about futuna conditions, In viow of tha
inhneant uncertainties snd the high level of subjectivity involved in the recognition or measurement of ema, hghlighted s tho
“eritical aocounting estimates and judgemants” in section 1.2 bolow, it is postibie that tho oulcomas in the naot financial yasr

ceuild dsffer fram those on which managomant's astimates are based. This could result in materislly difesent satirmates and
judgements from those reached by managamant for the purposas of thoss finandial stateamonts.

Managemant's salectian of the Entity's secounting poficies that contaln critcal astimates and judgemants reflects the matasality
of tha itama to which the policios are applisd and tha high degeoae of judgament snd satimation unesrtsingy iFveted.

il Golng concermn

Tha financial ststemonts aro prepaned on a going concarn beais, as the Dinctors are satisfied that the Ertty hive the resounces 1o
continu in businoss for the fomaseable futsne. In making this assessmont, the Directors hawve considenod n wida rango of
Imlarmatian relating e presant and future conditions, including future projections of profiwbllity, cash Bows. capilal requiremants
and capital Thosa conslds ! nclude strossod scenarios that reflect the uncertainty that the global Covid-18
pandamic has had on the HSBC operations, a3 well as considering potential krpacts from other top and emaesging risks, and ths
ralated Impact on peoditabillity, capitsl and Bquidity.

12
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HSBC Management (Guarnsey) Limited

{g] Use of estimates and sssumption about future conditions

The proparation of financial infarmation requines the use of estimates and sssumptions about futuhe conditions.

Thasn eatimates and Esumptions required management ta mako judgemonts about tha carmying value uged in obinining MNet
Assat Value [NAV) which sre not readily availabie from sourcos othes than the underlying fund administrator, dua 1o tho tme lag

batwasn tho firancial siaslamants baing prepared and tha relsase of the final MAV, Thesr ostimates and assumpiions ors Daded on
historicad exporiences and other lactors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Thae Entity will continue to revisw whathor these estimates that have beon mado reprossnt an SCCurabs roprassniatian o the
financial information provided. Revisions 1o sccounting estimates are recognised i tho period i which tho astimates ar fevisod
and in any futurs pericds affected. In the opinion of management, all posmal and ing adju ts conaidenod ¥ lot
a lakr presamiation of the Entiny’s sccounting policies that contaln critical astimates and judgemants reflacts the materality of the
itams 10 which the pelcies am appled and the high degree of judgement and estimation uncerainty irmoleed,

1.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

in) Investmeonts in subsidiaries

Tha Entity clasaifion investmants in antities which it eontrols as subsidiarios. As the Entity doss not praparo consaolidated Financial
statements, subsidiaries are unconsolidated,

Tha Entity’s investmants in subaidiaries aro stated ot cost less impatment kosses.

(bl Ermployes componsation and banofits

Share-based paymanis

Tha Entlty entors inte both equity-setthed and cash-settied share- based payment srrangements with its employees as
companeation far the provision of thalr senvices,

Tha vosting pared faf thass schamed may comimends batare the legal grant date if the amployees have started to render sendcos
in mespect of the sward bofors the legal grant date, whero thers is a shared undersinnding of the terme and conditions of the
arranpamant, Exponses ane recognised whan the smplayes starts to render service 10 which the award relates,

Cancellations result from the fallune to moet & non-westing comndition during ihe westing period, and are treated a8 an sccolaration
of vating rocognised immadistely in the ncome statement. Falure 1o mest 8 vasting condition by the employoe (5 not treated as
o cancallation, and the smount of sxponse recognised for the sward i adjusted 1o raflect the number of Bwards oxpested 1o vesl

Post-amploymant benefit plans

HIBL group opsrates o number of pension schemos including defined banefit, defined contribution amd post-emphoyment benafi
schames.

Prymenis to dalinad contribution schamaes are changod as an exponss as the employoss rendor sansios,

Defined benalit ponsion obligations pre calculated walng the peopactad unit credit meathed, The met charge to 1he income statement
mainly comprises the sarvica cost and the nel interast on the not defined banofil asset or Esb3ity, and is presentod in operating
DAPDMEE.

Remaaserement ol the nt defined bonelit asset or lability, which compriss actuarial gains and losses. retum on plan assecs
excluding intorest and the afiect of tha et celling (If eny, excleding intesest), s recognised immaodiately in other
compeahanaisn incoma. Tha nat dafinod banofit assst or lobility ropressnts the present valoe of dofined banatin obilgationa
reduced by the lalr value of plan assots, alter applying the ssset celing test, where the net dofined banefit sumplus is limited to the
prasant value of avallable refunds and reductions in future contributions 1o tha plan,

Tha cost of obligations srising from other post-amployment plans ara scoounted far on 1he same basis as definod beneft pansian

pans.

Critical scoounting estimates and judgamants

Tha imest shpeicant crtical stoountng estimabes relata o the detanmination of key W pppiied in oaloulating the defned benadi pession
chligation T the prircipsl plan.

& A g of assurmptions could ba spplied. srd B ferent sssumptions could
signicanthy altar the defined beestit obiig wnd the
recognised in profit or keas ar DCL

* The caleutaton of 1he dafined banefis pension chlgaton inchades
asssmptions with regard 1o the di ratp, inflation rase, p
Py and dedotied P, pay oo ity Mansg
o ngs T Foena in gonpatation with fho plan’s aciusrion

* Kny sssumptions used in caleulating the defised Banedil panion
obbgation for thi princinsd plsn 5t The sanilthity of the calzdation 15
dlillied Ehdurnpaeas st depdribed in Nate B

fc] Ta=

Incama tax comprises current tax and doferred tax. Incomae tax s recognised In the income statement axcept o the axtent that it
rolstas 1o lams recognised in other comprshanaive income o directly in eguity, in which case the tax is recognised in the sams
statmmant in which the related itern appears.

Cusrent 1ax is the tax axpecied 1o ba payable on the taxable profit for the year and on any sdjustment fo tax payable in respoct of
pravvious years. The Entity provides for potentlal current tax Eabilities that may asiss on the basis ol the smounis sxpected ta be
paid 10 the tax suihosizies,

Cusrent lax Is caléulated based on tax ratns and lows enacted, or substanthaly enacted, by tha Balancs abhowt data.
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HSBC Management {Guernsey) Limited

{d) Financial instrumants measured ot amortised cost
Trada snd ather recesvahhon

Trade and other rocelvables am rocognised initially at fair vales and subsequantly messured ot amortised cost using the aHoctise
Intarest mathod, s provision for impalrmint. Assels classifled ond moasured at amoriised £ost are monltosed for any expocied
crodit loss using the simplified approsch.A prevision for impairment is established when there ks objective ovidence that the
Ensity will not be sble to collect all amounts dut acoording to the original tanms of the recsivablss. The emount of tha provision is
tha difipronce batwoen the ssaet’s carrying value and the p value of estimated futune cash Mows, discounted st the orginal
affective interest rato. ¥When a trade receivable is uncolisctable, it 1 wiitton off sgainst trade recslvablos &nd the amount of tha
less ks rocognisad In the income statement. Subssquont recoveres of amounts previoushy writton off are credited 1o the Inceme
Halemant.

Tradw and other payablas

Tradn and athe: payablos roprosant liabilites for goods and services provided o the Entity by othor group companies prios to the
and af the financlsl year, which sro unpaid. The amounts s recognised insially a1 thair fair value snd subsegquantly maasured at
amortised sost dsing the affectve interesl method.

Accrunls and cther finsnciol iabilities
Tha amounts s recoagnisod initinlly ot air value and subssquently measured at amorised cost using the eflestive intorast
riythed

(2] Callad up share capital

Financial ingirumaents issued ase generally classified as equity whan thero is no contractus obligation to ransier cash of ather
firancial assets, Incramental costs dérectly attibutabio 10 the ssus of squity struments are shown in oguity as a deduction from
the proceods, re of e,

1] Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash squivalants include highly liguid investmants that are readily convartible to known armounts of cash and which are
subject to an ndgnidicant risk of change in value. Such Invesimants sre nosmatly those with leas than three months' ity
rom the date o acquiaition,

{g] Operating income

Imtatoat incorme and oxprnse

Iterast income and exponse for all financlal instremonts, sxcluding thase classiled aa held for wsding or dosignated ot fair valus
ara recognised in “Inveest income” and 'Intensst expensa’ in the income staterment using tha elfective ntersst mathod,

Tha atfective inlorest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futum cash receipls or payments through tho expected life
of the financial instrument ar, whara approprista, & sharier parod, 1o the ned carrying omount of tha financial aeset or lianncial
Eability.

Intorest on cradit-impalrod financial sgsets (s recegnised using tho rato of intorest used 1o discount tho future cash flows for the
purposd of mabturing the impalrmaent (oss.

Non-interest meoma snd expanss

Net foe incoma Is sarmed from a diverse range of sorvicas provided by the Entity 1o its customars, This is recognised in the
scsounting paricd when the serdices e rendessd at an armount that rfiects the considaration to which tha Entity axpocts 1o be
arititled i sxshange Tar fulfiling s performance obligations 1o customers. The principles spplied 1o the revenue recognition
critaria uss tha five step model In IFRS 15, Aevenos & determined basod on the transaction price negotiatod with the customer,
Irvastment maragement sansices ate satigliod cvor time a5 the sorvices are provided and are typleally based Upon § partoatEE
of tha value of the cliant’'s aswis under managomant. Any (ees collectod in advance are deferrad and mcognised as Incoma aver
tha period In wiich sendces ar rendensd.

Parformanca fes revonuss will fluctuats fram pariod 1o periad and may not correlate with geneml marked changes, since maxt of
tha fean are driven by relative perforrnance to the rospective benchmark ratmaor than by absohe perfermance. Perormance Teo
ravenuas any genorabed on cenain managament contracts when performance hurdios ang achieved, Such fon revenyues aro
rocarsded in apecating revonues whon the contractual perfarmance critoria have besn met and when it s probable that a
significant revorsal of rovenue recegnised will net eccus in fulure reporting pericds. Given the uwigue nature of eoch fee
arrarpaman, parformance fea contracts ans evatuated on an individusl basi 1o detesrine the timing of fevenus fecagaltion.
Performance lees may arisa from Investmont managoment sctivitios that wara inftially undartaken in prior reparting pesicds,

1% 8 common Tor tha Entity to utilise cortain HSBC affiliafed entities to fulfil certain parformance obligations in its revenus
agreamaents. Gonsraly, tho Entity is desmed 1o be the principal in these arrangorments, becausa the Entity contrals the services
telrn iy @ne tranaferrod o customars. Such controd is ovidenced by tha Entity's primnary responsibiling 10 custamen, The ability
to negotiate the atfiliate price and saloct and direct affiliate sorvice providers, or a combination of these Tharafors,
managemens fae revenwes and the related aMiliate distribution, serdce and sdviscry oxpantas o reported on o gross basis as the
sorvices ann provided.

Four sxpanisns paid for the distribution and provision of sorvices is recognised os axpanss 83 1he senvicss are provided.

Dnadond incosma

Dividend Inoome i3 mcognised whan tha nght 1o recaive & peyment it astablished. This is usually the date whon tha
sharshalders appnove (he dividond for equity securitis.

Gther operating incomo ia samaed from s divenses renge of sandces provided by the Entity 19 its customars.
(h} Offsetting of financial assets and financial Babilitios
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Financial assets and financial kabiilos are offset and tho net armount ls reported in the balence theot whon there is a legally
enforesable right 10 offset the recognised amaunts and thore i an ntention ta seitie on @ nat baals, or realise the ssset and setih
tho Fability slruitanscusly,

2. Net interest income

2071 Fie
SH000 [

LUy B
lirtdrast income on heanclal ingtrementa 1 5

3. Net fes incomea

031 G
o US§000 UEI000
Fund marsgeman, sSminasration fay s roame feaey B0,539 1,405
Parformance e = AL 18,810
Total fes anad commissien incams (TR ) s
CHMMAaE0N P W groun unaerakigt — 17824 17,074
s commistion paid 15 third partes : [INEL] LT
Ervmanmasn Bvaory feed 18T T, 204
Farformance fees - [CETL] a3
Furdl massgamar, sdminafstion fass snd inmban fess 281} 1605
'mmnmw m ﬁ_,':ii
Hint fow bncome BaR8 [NEL]

Managoment and trustes fess

Thas Entity receives managemant, administration and trustes fees, normally basod on & percentage of tha underlying Net Asset
Walug | WAV} or 1otal commitmants of the respactive funds, Management, sdministration and trustes fees are recognised on an
acciuals bosis. Tha management, administration and trustos fees receivabln a1 the year-end detaifed in Mote 13, Fidusiany Incoma
from tho Entity's regulated fiduciany sctivities amaunt ta §1.1 millien 2033 $1.1 million).

Return commissions paid to group undertakings

Tha Entity pays, a1 s discretion, raturn commissions 1o group undartakings snd cenain spproved thind partios whao introduce
tubscribans 10 fands undar managemant. Ratwrn oem missions fall inlo two categonies; Fist a portion of the Pacemant fos (whars
applicable] and second o8 ongoing traller commission basoed on tha HAY ol monles introdused by units and which femain

sEosisted with the particular enit. Commissions sno accourted for on an aconsatls basls and the commissions payable st the yaae-

erdd aro dotallec in Note 15,
Investment advisory fees

Tha Entity pays investmant advisory feos to feliow subsidiary of HSBtGrMm ghird pany MBNaGors wisoro managoment has
benn dologabed. Invesimant adviscry fees are accounted for on an stcruals basks.

Parformance fees
Lindar iha varicas managamant grasments with the undarlying funds, the Entity may ba entitied to o pedormanca fea, The Entity
has tha sbifity to alare any such Porformance fiees with associastes and investmant schvisers &8 approprints. Parformancs feas ana

rocognisad whan the right 1o recaive the parformanca fae incoms is astablished.

Whant & service is tranaferned to the cusiomar before the customor pays considoeration, or before payrmont b dus, 1Res EmoUns
are incloded as accrued incams in Mots T3 Whens the Entity kss an unconditional fight te considaration for the sendces supplied
ard perlermance abligations deliverad, those amounts are included as trada hablas in Mot 11,

4. Other operating income

2031 00

uszose usgos

(et eperating incomas (&5 133

“Fersign mxchange foasigen [1is} (5]

“Yaar anded 31 Dag ey ()
5. Employes compensation and benafits

Totnl emplayes compansation

2071 e

. U000 LS oo

Empicyse compentaton and barefits 1918 1,859

All stalf acting on bahalf of the Entity aro pald by HSBC Bank Pl Guemnasy Branch (GFEL On o manthly basis, GPB invalces the
Entity for stalf vtilised in the Entity's operations. For the yoar endod 31 Docember 2021, GPB biliod 1he Entity o toisd of $1,517.530
(2020 $1.BE7.578) for salories and bonalits.
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Axarage numbar of parsons amployed by the Entity during the yaar

2021 Py
Mo He
Depragiong and Suppon 13 13
“Fliad! T¥fice Admimiatration z F
Yaar anded 31 Dac z i3 3

Ehwiwnumhnrdmnmmlu\md by tha Entity during the year includas the Dérscions whe ane diectly employed by the
11

6. Auditors” remuneration

T F
[TEEe ) [rt3]

Fuadit lnoy Aor winteory el
- Fman rwisting bo ourmmst yese Y T
Voar snided 31 Des Lrd ]
¥. Tax expensa
Tax expense

T )
= UEE00 L]
I_Eﬂﬂﬂ
Chmmmury Corporyion 1
= Fér curnmt yaat 23 2
I:whmuwm T )
Yoar anddad 31 Dwo 30 L

Fﬂlﬂ\ﬁﬂﬂI:Hmwn#nllhﬁl-rmuI'.NtﬂdmmlEmwMM-]ﬂleMﬂMnmﬂﬂmiS
Dwecamber 2012, with affect from 1 January 3013 tha Entlty's income sriasing. not of deductiblo expanses, from spocific rogulated
Fewciary businpes is taxed ot the Entity inermadiste rate of 10% (Noto 3 shows the fiduciary income aarmed in the yoae).
Subsequant on 28 July 2015, the incoma tax (fere 10) [Company Intarmediate Rats) [Amandment] (Guemsoy) Ordinance 2015
[tha ‘Ammendmant’} was posssd, eltective from 1 Jonuary 2015. The soopa of taxable business activities, subject 10 the Entity
imprmodiate rate of 10%, was extended o include income freen the adminigtration of controlled imvestments. Tha Baard of
[ispetors considared the existing revanua from the adminlstration of controlied |reastmants to be out of Loepe o8 the
Amendmant, section 2E, included cnly provision of sdministretion senvices bo contreled invesirnents by unconnected thind
partion, The rerrainder of thn Entity’s incomea |s taxed a1 the company standard rate of 0%, Tho Entity has USS29, 870 expenass in
ralatian to the taation on its fiduciary businoss COZ0: LISS24,248)

Theas affective Guarnsey carporation tax rate applying 10 tha Entity was 0L44% (2020, 0.44%)
Tax reconciliation

Tr tae chinrgod T the Insoma Statemant doss not difler 10 tho tax oaponss that would apply i s profits had bean tacod 81 tha
Guarnsey Corporalno tax rate.

T 200

UEO00 LA

Pt S S ymar bartiem income fan BITA BAI0

Exiimated i 42 169 J GUI0; 1090 BT E&T

P R frn e 4T W

e a0 4
8. Dividends

man M0

LIRS par sharm URE000 1454 pa shars a0

—— e

Final 80 geams dhicksnd i rearen of e Cuvant yaas B 000 7 T

A todnl dividend for 2021 of S50 million (2020 575 milkon] wias paid on the ordinary share capital during the year ended
31 Decombar 2021,

9. Cash and cash equivalents

o E
O LS P S UPRLTI I F SR L UL T FOLTY. L
Amnusts haid with cther group underskings L. L

Amounts held with other group undarakings s unsecured and repayable on demand from oparating scthvitien.
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10. Reconciliation of profit before tax to Net cash flow
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2031 ]
- U008 [T
Profit beles tas CREr] T
Nan-cash Hem icluted in prefit sed loss S
Bimination for mxchangs LEE] =]
118 [
Changs i Gpersling it
mhmﬂﬂmuil_l_hmm ﬂﬁ 21,100
CRanga In rade snd ather rrosvatess e =]
o 13804 (L]
ﬁ“'"'"""'“"'"""". I
Crangs In atenash and cihor Aabiates [ET 4376
Changa n ata s iher papis - e
BETE EE
bntmneat and divicesds
Irhareat eceived -~ G 2]
“Vax pakd for tha year =] =
Nt cah T # frum ting aciivita 540 s
11. Trade and other receivables
o For]
Il i, U008 B0
“Armiurirs Gus from oiar grius undertakingt 1,638 ]
Trade mcabrabins — 7066 ()
Trudde and ather receivaisies prioe to provision X0 (510
NBsrwance Tor doubitful iz 1395) 1850
L o 208 [Xea)
Amaunis due from othor group undartakings are unsecured and repayable on domand,
Tha Ertity applias the IFRS 8 simplified approach fo measurieg expectod crod lostas which uses » Hetime expoctod loss
alicnwance for | trodo and othes recelvablas.
Tha loss allowances for rade and other recofvables ou at 31 December reconcile to tha opaning loss alowanoces as foliows:
T 30
LIS 000 Lg00g
A1 Jan ann (53
Hllrll-hhlll_ I grismd bn peofs or loss during The year [ a3
Petahasien weition of diing (P paar b Lnosiiectibin 63 o]
Abrartebe] BTt rowernos - 14
fu 31 Do e (153
12, Investments in subsidiaries
I 20
EF000 S0
Imepgimand in pubbdaries 0.001 G.nat
. n
—_— h_rﬂ-nm mw whas Class  Moof shares
“HEAC [Gusraey) GP PG Limbed 1 " Gumrnaey 108 Driinary UGS 1
F]
“HEBE [Gosmaey] GF POC Limmeal 00 Ovlirary U531 i

. Addness: Aokl House, St Ladian's Avencve, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GYT 1144
The subsidiary scts a3 a Goreral Partner ler Guernasy Limited Partnerships.
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13. Prepayments and accrued income

a3 i)
USF000 000
Private Enuiry Misragement Fess arA0n T
Fowl Extate Marapament fees 3888 2067
Performanca fee T ] VAT
At 31 Deo 56318 a8 400
14. Trade and other payables
2021 T
S 000 ]
AMGRriE Gun 10 GIr R0eD Wdariategs 28918 B
Mﬁhnuﬁummm undantalings ore untecusod, interest froe and have no fizod date of noprymients.
18. Accruals, deferred incoma and other financial liabilities
Eo Eoo]
_ ussoon LS 000
L) 2.0 LEC1
Hccrualy = 1,128 [
Amcrnty svessd o 3thes FIip undstakings 27353 [E]
Othet babiities ——— e
A3 Dee e ] 7B
Amaunts dua ta ethar group undertakings are ureatured, non-inferest bearing and repayable on demand.
16, Offsotting of financial assets and financial liabilities
As at 31 Decornbor 2071, there wore no amaunts subject 1o enforcenbia matting arangamarnts (2020 Mil).
17. Called up share capital
- E]
——— Humber Uioog Humbar S 000
Tassies, WicHied mnd Tuly paid up
Ol sharya et ek L] L N B—
Apat 1 Jamaary ard 31 Decarmber 100,008 158 100,00 ]

18. Contingant liabilities, contractual commitments and guarantess
Thirs wono ng contingant llabiitics of financial QisranTse Contrscts b3 8131 Docambar 2021 (2020 nil)

The Entity has received notificotion of a legal caim from an inesion in redation 10 & legocy vsestment which tha Entity mansges
on bohall of the invester. The mattor is ot an early stoge. Based on tha facts currantly known, it & not procticable to prodict tho
rosglution of this matter, including the timing or sny possible impact on the Entity, which could be significant.

19. Managemant of financial risk

At of tha Entity's sctivities Imeolve to varying dogross, the analysia, evaluation, neceptance and managemeant of risks o
eombination of risks. Tha most importont typos of risk include fnancial risk, which cormgerises credit risk, lquidity risk and mardost
rigic. Tho manepemont of firancisl risk snd conaldarntion of profitabifity, cash fiows and capital resources form a koy alament in
tha Directors” nssassmant of 1ho Entity s a going concom,

Credit risk management
Erﬂllriﬂhﬁuﬂﬂﬂﬂnllﬁl‘llﬂuﬂlﬁ:ﬂmﬂrmﬂpﬂmMh&mlﬁNMlemllpwml
confract

Within the overall framevwork of tho HSBC Group poley, the Entity has an established risk germent procoss oncompasal
credit approrvals, the controd of exposures, crodi policy direction 1o the business, and tha 'lglndtlpurﬂnnnd‘n:pﬂmu
Tha managimsant of tha Entity is responsible lor tho quality of it eredit porfolios and follows a cnadit | imvohving delegated

appraval nutharties and croedit procadures, the objective of which b to idarity problern axpeaurns In cidor to sccalorato remedial
sction while building a portlallo of high quality rsk assots. The Entity's credit risk rating systoms and processes difforontiats
eaposures in order to highlight thoso with greater risk factors and highar pobential severity of loss. Reguisr revienys 8o undanaken
3 B3 Bnd pvaluate bevels of risk concantration.

The risk arises from transactions with HSBC underiakings. The managemant of cradit is undoertaken in eamplisnce with the Entiy
rocharge strategy. Thi Entity oparazes within this and the onedit risk exposures aro reviewsd and managed by tha senior
managemant of the Entity and tha HEBC Group's Fimance Exco, Tha maximem credit axposure of the Entity is limitad to the
carying valus of the dued frem an HEBC Group eompany snd third party. Bilantes sro primarily with the MSIC Group and thind
party and have low credit risk.

Croelit rigk ks mansgnd within tha everall irsmawark of HEBC paliey, weth on establshed risk t procass ancompasying
credit approvals, the control of exposures (inciuding those to borrowers in financial difficulty], credit policy direction to business.
wunies mnd the manitaring and reporting of sxposures both on an individual and porfolio basis. The Directors ane respansible for
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thae quality of credit portfolics and fellow a credit process invelving delegated approval suthorities and credit procedures, the
abjoctive of which Is to build and maintain risk assets of high quality,

Reguilar reviews ano undertaken 1o a3sess and ovalisala levels of risk cancantration, including those to indhidual Indusiry sectors
and prosducts. Credit risk Is managed ot a group level by businesa sectar, rashar than i respect of indiidual undedakings and it is
therodom not consadensd approgrints 1o distloss quantitative data about exposwne to that risk,

Tha Entity's exposune bo coadit risk in relathon to cash hald with other group entites relaies 1o group undertakings that ase whally-
ownend S bislianas of HEBC Holdengs ple, and am part of the Business doscribed above. Such counterparntiss have no histary of
detault andd have benn ablo to moet their liabilites a3 thoy tall due. On thia beals the Entity considers 1he amounts due to ba fully

necovarabde,
Thara am no significant concontrations of risk in the Entity.
The Entity's sxposune to risk arises mainly fram third party and intercompany Toa recelvablos. An Impeant messurs of crodft risk
s in tho ageing of fees recehabie & reported below,

O weithin 80 days. Dus DOdeys - 1 ysar  Dus oves 1 year Toual
At 31 Des 7021 USY000 [ [ 5000
Canh and cash squraiests 12553 - - 13,552
Trada and oiher recaivabien 043 2,783 340 0,308
FrET - A5 300 EXT 34 B0,298

Dt it 80 s, Dm0 - | pmar Dhum cver 1 yaar Toisl

A 31 Dec J20 [Ueyea] [ RO LEE000
Tl &'l caah sguveinnts 18020 - = 8728
Trade pred o1har receiealios (X7 (5] [ 6T
] —— 36,005 Y -] F0.400
sl empEduin L A5H 1Ld B B3553
Liquidity risk managoment

Liquidity rigk ks the risk that the Emtity doos net have sufficient financis! rosources to meed obligations as they fall dug or will have
aconss 1o such esouwrces only ot an oxcessve cosl, Tha rigk arisos from miasmatchss in the liming of cash Rows.

Tha following ks an analysis of whdipcounted cash flows payabiln undar various financial Eabilities by ramaining contractual
mafturities at the balance shoel date:

Contractual cah
Torwew

Carmying walss O Damand

EER D00 uEE 000 U5 000

Trace #nd s pryslien LI FLEA] ELEILY
Ascrual ard i Tabise FERIE] L] BmNI
“Hn 31 Dee 2021 0,679 BO.63F 50,638

Cevuraciust caah

Earrying vabe frwn O Dpmand

USE000 UISE000 Ly oo

Trnda #nd othar peyabies 26554 P6504 5L
Hrcrualh #ed ot Fabd e T 17,068 17,568
AL Decourd BEEF) [LEe] AdEE

Markot risk managemant

Maskot riak is the risk that mevaments in market factors including interest rates, foreign exchango rates of aquity and ecmmodity
prices will bmpact the Entity's incors or the valus of its porticBos.

Tha Entity’s objective is to mansge and contnal market mte sdposures whils malmtaining & markat prafil sonsistont with it rak
appatite.

Thir Erity manages market risk through risk limits approved st the Risk Masagemant Mesting snad sdopted by the Entity’s Board.
An indapandort rigk unit chovelops risk mansgoment policies and massuramant tochnigues, and reviews fimit utifisation on a dally
Dk

Forelgn exchange risk

Currancy sonssivity

A5 % strongthening of the US Deller agalnet the followdng currencios as a1 31 Docember 2021 would have reduced prafits by the
amoients shenan badaw, A 5 % waakening would have had tho squal but opposite affects to tho amoums shown below:

Profe or Lasas
wan T
UE§ 000 us§0c0
Eurg =1 Fil
Beitinh Forerd E=1) 13
Swina Ranc: ] 7
Chihada Vs - i
Pﬁwhwqb; e =
Az 31 Dec s 7

144/185



HSBC Managemant (Guermnsey) Limited

Foroégn axchangn rlsk

EDINETOOOO

O00OO00O00O00000000o0noonoOonod(esL8s)

Oooooooooooobooooooad

Tha Entity iz sxposed to currancy risk in regpect of income and cash balancos denominated In a currency cihar than LIS Dellar.
Tha Entity’s auposiee is kopt 15 an acceptable lovel by mansging the kevel of non-US Dollar cash balances on a regular basis. The
Entity's: bolance sheet comprises balances held in dilferont currancies. At the rapeeting date tha currancy profile of the Entity

balance shest was:

US dollary Hawriing Tum D Totsd
A 3N Diee 3T ] ] Ugs-000 UEF000 USI
“Fotal mesets 1,568 A = 2873
Tata! lateicien a7 equsy 151,728) [EE] ] = 53,309
el expeturg 18,725 axg 87 = 18,764
o S oalan Sy [ Tiher Teodl
AL 31 Do 3000 e U000 [ [Ty i
Tots eimetn [4X ] 1600 B54 a1 B35
ol Lansinies #ad gty [ 2] ] - 13,555
Baad pacpepan EE] £ 50 Ll

20. Financial resources requirement

Thi tnble below sets outl the caleulation of financial resoutcs requiremants pursuant 1o the proviskans under the now Licensess
[Capial Adoquacy) Rulas 2021:

Fer] woro
e UBH000 e 000
Fingoacial reansace regeatamant 181 =
Fiet aniets afier achusmands, conirgent BT and 1nky T 33,643 33545
Grmater ol 5% Al Aufiod Expendiun snd F100,000 U053 136 540y Tam e
Mat Surpbes Finencisl Rrsources a2308 JLEAT
el Eurant anseth. laas bnan 10 Qroup Dompany 18,130 EET]
“Greater of 109 Anual Audited Expenditure £od L1000 fUS% 10,658 o) ;
Pt Surpin Lty (L T —

In pdditicn, thom mus be a minimum peolassional indemnity insurance covor of C300,000 {or three times 1otal mensus,
whichéver is greatar}, the cxcess of which must rot excoed 20% of the totsl insuned.

21. Related party transactions

Tha Eniny's melatod parties inchade the parent, fefiow subsidiacios, post-armploymaont benedit plans {or the Endicy's omployees, Key
Management Pefsgnnal, closs family membern of Key Managem-ont Persanned and entities which ate contralied o signiticantly
Infiuenced by Kay Managarnent Parsonnsl of thiir close family members.

{a) Transactions with Directors and other Key Management Personnal
Key Monagomant Permsonnal are defined as thase persans having sutharity and responsibility for planning, dérecting and
contralling tha sctivities of the Entity and includes mombars of the Board of Direciors. No inane ware made 1o Kay Mansgemaent

Parsannal for the year anded 31 December 2021 (2020; Nona. The table below providos the koy managemant parsonne!
compansation who aro on H58C Managamend {Guernsay] Limhed payrall,

2031 Futryl ]
UEE'000 USE000
St tarm armpieryes banales 578 £t

Thraa of the key managemaont perscnnel o nat remunerated by the Entity but instesd recalve thelr compensstion from HS8E
Global Asset Management Limited, the immediats paront entity. Thore ane no other ransactians, athar than fees paid to Directors
of the Entity, betwaon the Entity and Key Parsonnel, which fal 1o be disclosed under IAS 24 “Aelatod Party
Distlosurea™ bavwaan the Entity and the Key Monagemaent Porsonnel

{b) Transactions with other related parties

Transactions datails balow ncluds amounts dus toflmam HSBC Giobal Assol Managameant Limitad

o o
Ligs{sha (a5 g il

Incoma statemat
Dividend 1o stuenhoider E.000 1500
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Tranasetlons datails balow includs amounts dus ioifrom othaer group wenderiakings

a1 ]
balapos  Balenas et 31 Fighest beence Ratareca wt 31
T — Decamber  during the year 1 Ducarmter
USH000 WSH 00 WEFO0D USE0
Adsals
Tadh g% erih egqanaent 0,534 13,5832 35374 [CEE]
Trade sod oibar receivabies [riT] 1,654 Lan (F 3
[
Trie ad other pryabin 30,554 6,810 e TEEE
Labitan 23,768 Fiim [ 11,380
1 The disciaswrs of tae hiphest balwaor eod the highost balancs duving the year & considenad the most o AN TR [ FeAE ST
transachions doring the year
o F=
EYB00 LS R
Aregcame yEaimmaend
Bt bt 1 %
Fow and tommizaizn ncama - Ford mansgemant nd sdmin Tonr 81 =
Feoand xpnse - Ao i 17034 17,874
Fam and cammixsion supans - vl wiviscry fomt 50,258 E KL
Fee ana fre o toen B2TT 6207
Emghay DerEIan 4 Danes 188 LT
e cperaling inoerrm = T
Giae b W B 1L Wt enprt 1,335 )
Tha abowve transactions ware moda In the ordinany of bus and on subsinntially the sxma tetme, incleding intorost rate

and security, as for comparable transbetions with persans af & similar standing or, whane applicabla, with other employess, The
ransactions did not involve more than the normal sk of repaymant of present other wndivourabie foatishss,

22. Parent undertakings

Tha ultimats pament urdertakieg and ultimate cantroliing parly i HSBC Holdings ple which is the pareat undertaking of tha largest
group bo consaldate these financial statements. HSBC Bank pic is the parent undertaking of the smaliest group 10 eonsalidate
thase finencial statomants,

The Entity is & whislly ownod subsidiary of s immediate parent underisking HSBC Gobal Asset Management Lirmited and has
bean so throughout the year anded 31 Decemibsar 2021, The Entity was incorparated in G on 25 5 ber 1888, All
companies, Witimate cantralling pasty, parant undortaking ard immadinte parant undartaking, an mﬂ-ﬂ i England and
Coples e the HSBC Global Asset Managemant Limited and HSBC Bank Mo consoldated Financial Statemanis ean ba ablained
from;

HSBC Bank ple

B Canads Squss
Landen E14 5HO

Unied Kingdom
W, habio cam

23. Events after the balance sheet date

Sinco 315t Docernbar 2021, the Balance Sheot date, thede hes baen significant market valstility relating mainly to recent
geopalitical svents that hawve taken place aftor the Balance Shest date and uncartainty remalng a3 1o their longar tarm
rmplications. Thass sventa have rot cauted o material decling in tha Entity's incoma and net nssots to date, Howewer, thosa
evanis have the potantial to adversely affoct the not sssets end income of the Entity |
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HSBC

HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited

4,000,000

HSBC
25799

HSBC

HSBC

HSBC

HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch

HSBC

HSBC

HSBC
HSBC Continental Europe

491

31

HSBC

HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA

708

31
142.40

HSBC

4,720

6,826 3,730

UFJ

1,008 1,920
UFJ

HSBC Securities Services (Guernsey) Limited

2,600,000

2,068
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HSBC
HSBC Alternative Investments Limited

602,000 9,740

E145HQ

HSBC
HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) DAC

2.5 348 1,000,002 3,863
HSBC 11 29
HSBC
HSBC 30
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Independent auditor®s report to the unitholders of HSBC Special Opportunities Fund
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of HSBC Special Opportunities Fund (the* trust” ) and its subsidiary (together the

“ Fund” ) as at 30 April 2022, and of their consolidated financial performance for the year then ended
in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (* FRS 102" ) and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

What we have audited

The Fund®s consolidated financial statements comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet statement as at 30 April 2022;

e the consolidated statement of total return for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in net assets attributable to the Unitholders of the Fund for
the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ I1SAs” ). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (“ IESBA Code” ) and with SEC Independence Rules. We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Emphasis of matter - financial statements prepared on a basis other than going concern

We draw attention to note 2 in the consolidated financial statements, which explains the Managers
intention to terminate the Fund. These financial statements have therefore been prepared using a basis
other than going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

The manager is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon.
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Independent auditor®s report to the unitholders of HSBC Special Opportunities Fund
(continued)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the manager for the consolidated financial statements

The manager is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, the provisions
of the Trust Deed and for such internal control as the manager determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the manager is responsible for assessing the Fund®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the manager either intends to liquidate the Fund or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. See note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, which refers to the manager®s conclusion on preparing the consolidated financial
statements on a basis other than going concern.

Auditor®"s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.
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Independent auditor®s report to the unitholders of HSBC Special Opportunities Fund
(continued)

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund®s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the manager.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the manager®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor®s report.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Fund to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Fund audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Use of this report

This independent auditor®s report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the
unitholders as a body in accordance with Paragraph 4.2(4) of The Authorised Collective Investment
Schemes (Class B) Rules 2021 and the Trust Deed and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this
opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in

writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Cl LLP
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey, Channel Islands

29 September 2022
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Independent auditor®s report to the members of HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited

Report of the audit to the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of HSBC
Management (Guernsey) Limited (the “company”) as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
requirements of The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, The Regulation of Fiduciaries, Administration
Businesses and Company Directors, etc (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2000 and The Protection of Investors
(Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2020.

What we have audited
The company”s financial statements comprise:
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;
the income statement for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (""ISAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor™s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (*"IESBA Code™) and with SEC Independence Rules. We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 1ESBA Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the Annual Report and Financial Statements but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor®"s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. IT, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union,
the requirements of Guernsey law and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company®"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company®s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company®s ability to
continue as a going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the financial statementsor, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor”s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Use of this report

This independent auditor”s report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the
members as a body in accordance with Section 262 of The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 and for no other
purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to
any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent inwriting.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Under The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 we are required to report to you if, inour opinion:

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit;

proper accounting records have not been kept; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Furthermore, we have examined the Statement of Financial Resources set out on page 20. In our opinion the
financial resources requirement specified inRule 2.1.(1)(b) of The Licensees (Capital Adequacy) 2021
Rules has been satisfied.

PricewaterhouseCoopers CI LLP
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey, Channel Islands

31 March 2022
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